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The City of Hallandale is located in
Broward County, on the southeastern copst
of the Florida peninsula, Dade County
bounds Hallandale on the citys south, the
City of Hollywood on its narth, and the
Atlamtie Doenn omilseast. The lntracoastal
Waterway divides the citys mainland see-
tion fram the peninsular barrier island
upon which a part o the city lies. Incorpo-
rated in 1927, Hallandale did ot truly

by WILLIAM R. ADAMS

becomae mn urban entity until the late twen-
tieth century, remaining essentially arural
commnity from the time of its founding in
the early 19008 until the decade of the
gixties, when the population mare than
doubled to nearly 24,000 residents. The
city contmined over 40,000 residents in
1992,

Before southeastern Florida became a
retirement haven in the pi:rﬂt-“'-{rl'ld Warll

Even in a region as characterized by change as Broward County,
few communities have seen as dramatic a transformation as Hallandale.
Established as a Swedish farming colony by the Florida East Coast
Railway interests, Hallandale soon lost its strictly Scandinavian iden-
tity, but retained its rural character until after World War L. Even the
great Florida land boom of the 19208 had a minor impact on the physical
development of this sgricultural community. By the 1930s, however,
depression and soil exhaustion ushered ina period of permanent agri-
cultural decline. The establishment of tourist attractions, most notably
racetracks and gambling clubs, brought a degree of excilement and a
new economic environment, but did not substantially alter the size or
physical development of the town.

It remained for the post-World War 1l population explosion fo
iransform Hallandale into a sizeable city, with a large retirement
population, sprawling commercial area, and a dense concentration of
beachfront highrise structures, Few traces of the historic farming
community remain,

The story of "Historic Hallandale”™ is told here by Dr. William H.
Adams, president of Historic Property Associates, a historic preservas
tion consulting firm based in St Augustine, Dr, Adams holds o PhI) in
history from Florida State University. This article is excepried from
"Historie Properties Survey of Hallandale, Florida,” a report preparced
by Historie Properiy Associates for the City of Hallandale.

ern and urban growth exploded, much of
the land within Hallandales corporate lim-
ita had been reserved for agriculture
Eastern parts of Hallandale now offer o
vista commen to the southeastern Florida
pomst, high-rise condominiums lining the
wiaterfront nnd commercial establishments
defining its major thoroughfares. The sec-
tion of the city which lies west of the
railroad tracks, once given to farms, i now
secupted mainly by single family residen-
tial lots, intersected by commercial streets
such as Hallandale Boulevard and inter-
spersed with schools, apartments, pockets
of commercial or industrial buildings, and
several government complexes,

Unlike most communities in south
Florida, Hallandale did net experience an
era of exuberant growth in the 1930s, but
retained its agricultural character for at
least another decade or more. Farms once
ocoupicd most of the present corporate
limits, and the growing, packing, and hp-
ping of tomatoes provided the community's
eeonomic baze, Belatively large agricul-
tural Lracis restricted the possibilities for
urban development. The buildings found
in Hallandale during the histeric period,
which begins with the community’s found-
ing and ends in 1945, consisted mostly of
ressdences, a few small-scale commarcial
gtructures, wnda ml.ul.l:-c:rufpul.'hil'lﬂ houses
whiere tomatoes were prepared for ship-
evenl Lo northern markets,

Physical Seiting
Before its modern development began,
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Map showing the present boundaries of the City of Hallandale,

at the turn of the century, southeastern
Florida consisted of a wilderness domi-
nated by pine trees and palmeito scrub,
The vegetation that once covered what is
now the mainland part of the city was, in
the early years of the twenticth century,
removed when the land was prepared for
modern agricullural use. A ndge of solite
limsestone runs along the coastline, form-
'il'li-.'t]ll-‘l:'\lﬂ_'.' g grovnd Toumd 1m Uhe aren
that resches from Lhe Atlantic Ocean bo Uhe
Evorglades in the southern part of the
peninsala, Solid rock two foet below the
land’s surface undergirds the soil of much
ol the lower eastern coast. Only & fow miles
inland the coastal ridge gives way Lo the
Everglades, a slow moving, freshwater
swarmp thirty miles wide and ene hundred
riles bongg that stretehes seross the lower
part of the peninsula. Reclamation, or
drainage, of the swamp in the early part of
the twenticth century extended habitable
land along Lhe coast westward ab an cnvi-
ranmental cost that only in recent years
s beggum o reveal ibself, Climatically the
arca is sublmpacal,

Arrival of the Florida East Coast
Railway (1884-1919)

Arrival of Henry Flagler's Florida East
Coast Railway (FEChin the ares in the last
decade of the nineteenth century irmevoca-

By altered the course of development and
history in east and south Florida. A former
partner of John D, Rockefeller in the Stan-
dard Chl Company, Flagler retired to St.
Augustine in the 1680s, where he plunged
inte the railroad and hotel business, Origi-
nally he intended tomake the Ancient City
the podnt of destination for his railroad and
convert Lhat small aty intothe “Newportof
the South.” Seon, howeser, Flagler began
cxbending his railway southward along
the coast, creating as it proceeded lowns
and settlements that eventually became
the aties that now line Florida's eastern
seaboard, Extending scuthward [rom
Dayiona Beach in 1552, the FEC reached
what is presently Fort Lauderdale in early
1896, Two months later, the line reached
avross Lhe Mew Hiver on ils way Lo Mizms,
where a piancer landholder, Jigia Tuttle,
and others had offered Flagler vast tracts
of land il he would bring his railrosd into
the settlement. Completion ol the railroad,
linking the Fﬂ.:].l-u|ul..|b- cilies 4 Lhie central
andd nertheastern coast allhe Uniled States
o =outh Florida, opened the mesL signifi-
cant chivplerin the region’s history, s period
which a century later continues o unfald

Henry Flagler did not consider the area
presently occupied by Broward Coundy a
particularly significant location when he
extended his line into south Florida. He

wis much more interested in Palm Beach
and Miami, where he constructed large
hatels for wanter visbors, ]"-I'-¢'|.'l,-_'rlJ'||:|l,-.5'..ur
his railroad alse brought in farmers and
settlers, some of them lured southward by
the glowing descriptions of inexpensive
homesteads and building lots which
Flagler's land companies published, and
by the promise of cheap and fertile agrieul-
tural acreage. The initial wave of settlers
1 Ll mid- 18205 cams from northern and
central Florida and seuthern Georgia,
many al Lhem victims of the “Big Freeee® of
1554-1895, which had destroyed the north
Florida atrus industry and ravaged veg-
ebable farms throughoul the southeast, In
south Florida they indeed found available
land for cleaming fanms upon which they
could raise winter vegetables, such as to-
maloes, beans and peppers, us well as
cibrus (ruats, Lo satisly the hungry demand
al northern urban markets, Flaglers rail-
road for the first time broughl those
miarkets within reach of south Florida's
agriculiural fields. The cities which today
line the FEC tracks in Palm Beach, Bro-
wairel and Dade counties almost universally
begun as agricultural communities at the
turn of the century.®

Land Reclamation
Land reclamation, the name given a
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stitessponsored prisgram W demin Lhe wiel-
lands, also played @ eritical part in the
develupment ol soulth Flarida, The wdea
el Meated about sinee the inid-nineteenth
cenlury, after the Congress in 18530 en-
acted & law awarding the states welland
arcais, Flomida received Gen mollion acres
under the ack and shortly therealler ere
aled administralive machinery Lo
implement sale of the land. ln 18B2,
Hamilton Dizston, a wealthy Philadelphia
sawmaker who spent his vacations in
Florida, purchased four million acres at
twenty-five cents an acre and began drain-
ing swampland, Farming communitics
spr\mrl.cd. on the “reclaimed” land, which
supparbed growth of a varety of froits and
vegetables, Disston ran into fnancal dif-
ficulty, but proved the technical feasibility
af the idea. A decade later, in P304, Gover-
meor William 3. Jennings announced that
“hi= first and chielduty in handling (Chese
lunc= b was 1o have them dramned and pe-
cligimed.™

ol

Photo above shows the Halland family in Stanton, lowa, ¢ 1880, Reverend
Bengt Magnus Halland is seated third from right; his son Luther is standing
at center. Below is a handbill in Swedish advertising an 1897 excursion
from New York City. Both pictures courtesy of Hallandale Chamber of

Jdennings’ successer, Napoleon Bon- Commerce,
aparie Broward, sponsored land
reclamation as a progressive reform mea- ¥ -
sure during his Lerm as governor BILLIG " LA YDE\KU HSIUN
(1905- 1909, He bolieved that the Ever- L - -

glades contwined the richest =0l in the
world and that by converting the swamp
inLo farmland, Florida might becsme the
warld's breadbasket, The state begslatore
gave his program strong supporl, and un-
der stale auspioes in 1906 work began.
Aluhough lechnological and linancial prob-
leins bedeviled the sbates reclumation
program, the work contimued wntil Uha
mid- 18k, In the meantime, Everglades
reclamution dramatically changed the face
of southeast Florida, procecing west ol the
Introccomstal Walorway cultivalable Land
from muck or swampland. The ultimate
usifulness of the program remains gues-
tiomahle, however: Lhe soil in the sastern
portions of the eounty became drier and
leas productive, while the reclaimed land
o the weat remained subject to the vagar-
e of Fainfall and water supply. Flooding
became a recurrent problem.”

Initial Settlement

Hallandale began as an agricultural
seitlement. In return for constructing a
rail line through the previcusly unsetiled
region, Lthe state awarded Flagler's com-
rany |=|:r|.|;|.= Lrwels of pulllu: landsbeside Lhe
railroad (and in some cases distant from
ikl which Flagler thereupon sald in order
ter finance his project, Flagler promotesd
and executed sale of the lands through his
oan land companics and through local
agienls. His principal land agent was James
E. Ingraham, whoe maintainsd his resi-
denoe in 5L Augustine while directing
land sales throughout east Florida®
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According to oral testimoeny from
Hallandale pioneer Carl Ericsson,
Ingraham himself was responsible for the
initial =ale of land and settlement in the
Hallandale region. By Ericsson’s version,
Ingraham encouraged a Swedish min-
ister's som, Luther Halland, to promote a
Bwedish settlement in south Florida, one
that would be comparable to a Danish
setilement just south of Forl Lauderdale,
Ethnie settlements were nod unusuaal at
the Lime, The east coasl of Floride is
sprinkled with towns and cities originally
populated by settlers of & particular ma-
tionality. Halland accepted the suggestion

and underlook Lo promote a seltlement in - |

the area that is now Hallandale.”

It was not a mimster’s son, but the
minister himself, the Rev. Bengl Magmus
Halland of Burlington, lowa, who promated
the community, Halland had suscessfully
organized “colonies™ for Swedish immi-

grants along rail lines in the Midwest, The |

eriginal contact with Halland was undoubt-

edly made not by Ingraham, but by (ol |

Zetterlund, Born OofJohnson, on Decem-
ber 17, 1858, in Sweden, Zetterlund, who

took the name of a stepfather, arrived in
thie United States aboul 1880, seitling in
Mew York, By the mid-1880s he had be-
come invelved in real estate promotion,
apparently successfully, since he subse-
quently wasable o purchase sizealde tracts
of land in south Florida, If Ingraham in-
vited either of those two W encourage
settlement in seuth Florida, logic suggests
Zetterlund, whoe s a Mew York land agent
wolld have been an obvious condsct for
real estate promolion. Zetlerlund aflen
traveled to the Midwest, where Halland
lived, probubly mel him there and stimu-
lated Halland's interest in south Florida
AL all events, h_].' 1897 tha pauir had em-
barked upon efforts o persuade Swedish
immigrants to move to south Florida, A
surviving handbill from the tme {1857,
printed in Swedish and distrbuted abaard
a Clyde Line steamer out of Mew York,
advertised the =ale of large tracts of land
for growing fruils ab inexpensive cost, The
flyer also traded upon the fears arowsed by
the recent great freeze, proclaiming the
Hillandale area safe from the frosts that
had rwined the froit crops in northern
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Letter dated 1886 from George F. Miles of the Florida Coast Line Canal and
Transportation Company, describing the reserving of "Scandinavian colo-
nies” ifrom the A. P. Sawyer Papers, Florida State Archives).

Florida®
The origin of the name given the com-

| munity appears self-evident, though same

sources have misattributed it to the coun-
tryof Holland, Ondumse 2, 1887, the United
States Post Office authorized establish-
mizl.of i biranch st the Qedgling settlement,
then officially wnnamed, although, as we
shall note, it was already called “Halland ™
The Post Ofiee gave it the name of its
principle promoter, the Rev. Halland, but
may have added the suffix “dale™ to
Halland's name to prevent confusion with

| & town by the name of Holland on the west

coast of Florida. Halland was named post-
masler, but in fact Charles Ericsson frst
actively servied in that position, which he
hield until 1907 *

Correspondence between Ingraham,
George F. Miles, president of the Florida
Coast Line Canal and Transportation Com-
pany, and AP, Sawyer, president of the
Boston and Florida Atlantic Company, land
developers, reveals that as early as Sep-
tember 18596 the name Halland had boen
attached to the community, Miles, whose
Bt Augustine-based company had been
engaged to construct roads and canals in
the proposed south Florida settlements,
also apparently participated in real estate

| sales and promotion. By Seplember 1856

twa “reservations” of lands for "Scandinag-
vian eolonies™ had been created south of
the Mew River, Ingraham visited the “eolo-
mies” ot Linton, Boynton, Moedelo [Dandal,
amd Halland in October 1886 and rvl,.'-|.rr.|rl-|:ﬂ
them well extablished, with people ®eom-
ing im daily.""

As of Movember 24, 1896, nu land sales
had occurred at the Halland colony, be-
cause the FEC was awaiting completion of
theland survey and construction ol a drain-
age system. A town site in Seclion 27 had
been selected, however, contered at the
present intersection of Hallundale Beach
Boulevirdand the Dixie Highway, Indanu-
ary 1897, Ingraham was still awaibing
applications for land purchases from the
“Halland people,” a reference sither to
prospects for that colony or o buyers actu-
ally associated with Halland, although no
reference to Halland himsell appears in
the :l]u‘r:;pt.mdﬂﬂ found in the AP Saw-
yer papers.!!

In February 1867, Zetterlund was at-
tempting to promote land sales. An
excursion by rail from Brooklyn, Mew York
had been arranged. The first purchasers of
bots and acreage in Halland included Mellio
Gieges, of whom more shall be told, F.
Jacohson, a minister from Brooklyn, and
the Swedish Evangelist Lutheran Beth-
lehem Churchin Brooklyn. In August 1EST
Ingraham sent Miles contracts for sales to
geven individuals, Two months later
Ingraham reported that 60 acres had
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Carl "Charles” Ericsson, prominent
Hallandale pioneer and early post-
master (courlesy of the Miami Her
ald),

beven sold al Halland in ten-acre bots, One
hundred tickets had been izsued for an
excurston from Jamestown, Ohic Lo
Hallamned. '

In the summer o 1857, ] A Bostrom of
Ormond Beach traveled Lo Svoeden at the
employment of the FEC o encourage im-
migration Lo Maodels, Hulland, and White
City. another proposed “Scandinavian
colomy,” located in what is now S0 Lueie
County at & sibe south of Fori Pierce.
Bostrom's efforts sucoseded “beyond ex-

pectation,” wrote Ingraham, despite the |
strenuous appasition of Swedish authori- |

ties, who apparently objected to the
attempts of Americans Lo promote emigra-
tion of Swedish cilizens, ™
Halland, of whom wefind scant contem-
porary documentation, reportedly did nod
redmain long in the communily named for
him amd which he helped to found. He
eslablished a trading store, which may
have remaimed in business for maore than g
decade, but Halland hamsell el the
community semetime in 1898, By thal
tima & number of sedtlers had arvived and
begun te farm. The fiest of them probakbly
imcluded Alvern Andrean, Charles
Ericsson, and the Cibeges family. Andrean,
born in Sweden, emigrated to the United
Sbistes in 1853 at the age of twenty-six. An
188 newspaiper secount of agriculture in
Hallandule reported that Andrean, a truck
farmer, had lve weres planted in tomatoes,
already the erop ol choiee For commeereial
farm production in the Hallanduale vicin-

ity, Andrean’s death in 1912 was recorded
in the Minme Mefropelis 1

Carl *Charles™ Ericason, barn in Swae-
dien in 1864, emigrated tothe United States
in 1885 and settled in the Sanford, Floride
vicimity, where he cultivated eitrus. The
Cireat Freezo of 1804-05 destroved his grove
and drove him from the state, He returned
in 1898 to settle in Hallandale, establish-
ing & homestead at a site near the
present-day Hallandale Post Office,
Ericeson farmed ten acres on ihe
Hallandale Beach Read and an additional
twenty seres on Pembroke Read. He alzo
served as postmaster from 1858 to 1907,
Une of Ericsson’s sans, B, Vietor, ootupied
a Furralliar p|=||::= in local governmaent and
busineass allawrs for Oy discades,

Awidew ol Swedishbirth, Mellie Gieges,
according to J.E. Ingraham the first per-
som toactually purchase land inthe Halland
aettlement, moved to Hallandale from Mo
York withtwesons and a daughber in 1897,
She initially maneaged a frame rosming
housg which the land eompany had con-
strwcted as temporary quarters for settlers,
Th= f:i.,uglru |iu‘i||:]|.ng, constructed in 1925
on the aite, the northwesl eorner of
Hallandale Beach Boulevard and [uxie
Highway, is now a community landmark,
Although the Gieges childnen were less
than twenty years of age at the time, the
family alse began farming and eventually
became one of the largest growers in the
arca, establishing its own packing house.'™

F.E. Kogero, a native of St. Sugustine,
Florida and descendant of the settlers who
accompanied the ill-fated 1767 expedition

that colonized Mew Smyrma, moved o
Hallandale before the turn of the century,
at age forty-six much older than most new
settlers, Cramar of & family name familiar
in 3t Augustine, Rogero, like other farm-
% in the area, began producing tomatoes.
He eventually set up a local saw mill. The
Rogero family house, a two-stary frame
varnacular building, remained standing
mlong the Dhixie Highway until the 1970s,
when it fell into disrepair and was demal-
ished,"

JW. Moffitt migrated to Hallandale
from Philadelphia in 1900 at the age of
twenty-=even, A native of lreland, edu-
cated in Scotland, Moflitt had previously
worked for the American Stores Company
befare the lure of profits in the truck farm
industry drew him to south Flonda, He
comtinued tomainiain g residence in Phila-
delphia while engaged in his Hallandale
business. A son of Moffitt's, J.W. MalTitt,
Jr., was born there in 1910 and broughtl to
Floridiaal the age ofone manth. MalfiL, Sr.
bisczane i prominent gure in Lown polilecs
and business. Heoperated a packing house
and managed production of tomatoes. from
different fields throughout the area. In
May 1927 Modfitd carried bo Tallahassee
the lecal appeal for state legmslative ap-
proval of the town’s incorporation, and he
sitbseyuenty served an the lirst lovon coun-
1l Hecatablished during that same decade
a real estate firm which continues in busi-
ness in the last vears of the contury, and,
among other business interests, acquined
FE FiHTa) |4|1,|r||;|1'_l,'. which |:-p-|,:ruLEd under
1.|'||.= H-:ll'ﬁil:. name, The readence which

& - -
a -._ "
.I!“"'

e

The J, W, Moffitl home, constructed in 15, is one of
Hallandale's oldest structures (courtesy of Hallandale Historical Sociely).
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Hallandale's F.E.C. Railway station, as it appeared in the 1920s
{eourtesy of Florida Photographic Collection, Florida State Archives).

MolTitd constructed in 1906 along what is
now Ehi Disae Highway, one block north of
Caty Hall, remains extant in the 1590s, one
ol the aty's landmark buildings.'™

Hallandale at the Turn of the
Century

The difficulty in establishing at this
dite the tract boundaries for the 190
census prohibits & determination of the
precise number of people residing in
Hallandale at the turn of the century. One
censusanalysis suggesis Lhal about bwelve
familics hiad seb up lwanesteads in the
wicimily. Seven of Lhae families were Swed-
i=h, two English, and three black, The
small number of residents in the area,
dispersed throughout some six o cight
sgquare miles of territory west of the
Intracosstal Waterway, hardly qualifies
az g community. The post office and
Halland's trading post undeubtedly con-
stituted the only  identifiable
non-resadential or farm institutions in
Hallandale, and the post office wag located
in Charles Ericsson’s home.'™

Many residents in a broad area sur-
rounding the post office in Hallandale
probably listed it as an address, further
confounding efforts to identify early resi-
dents within what are now the recogmized
ity limits, In the 18881902 period, nu-
merous people declaning & Hallandale
address fled clivims for land in Townsghip
51 South, Hul:q.;l: 41 East, immediately
west of the township within which

Hallandale s sibwated. Their namees, cone
tmined in a state land mgents reporl,
included M.C. Pike, J.E. Mosley, C.W.
Brown, N A Carlson, A Andraindsicl, A L.
Bryan, Oscar Anderson, N.C. Bryan, W.GL
l:ll'_l,'all.. JR. Charlton, C.M. Howell, J.H.
Johnzon, John T. WofTord, J.W. Wollord,
Edwin Anderson, John Anderson, Charles |
Errick=zon igicl, and George E. Galloway.
T gain pussession ol the kand under stule
law, the claimant had Lo establish resi-
dence on the parcel, limited to V60 smes or
les=, orimprove it Residents of Hallandile
listed in the 1910 census whose claims L
western lands were eveniually validated
included HF. Ingalls, the wile of CE.
Ingalls, M.C. Bryan, J.H. Juhnson, and
AT, and J.W, Wollord, ®

A reporter for the Mrara Metrgmlis
made a visit throughout the agricultural
region north of Miami in late 1393 o
inspect the farms. Ina resulting article, he
describied twenly-one farms on “Halland
Prairie,” listing the owner, the number of
acres under cultivition, and the crops pro-
duced on the farm. The largest farms were |
ascribed to Charles Anderson, forty-four
acres, and William Norton, twenty acres,
all in tomatoes, The farm of Mesely and
Hillyard had in production lén acres in
peppers, one in cggplant, one in beans,
four in potatoes, and four in cucumbers
and sguash, Recognizable names in the
report ineluded 5. Sjostrom and J.T.
WalTord, who eventually bocame packing

house operators, and the Greges brothers.
Charles Anderson, from Alabama, Davenly-
weven vears old in 1898 and married Lo a
waman barn in Sweden, was listed in the
15910 eensusas renting e lod be farmed ™

The identity of the black [amilies whao
inhabited the area is unclear, Equally
uncertain is whether any of them farowed
as a lreeholder of land or as a sharecropper
or whether all worked as field hands for
white frmers 1o the area. The three were
suan joined by many others, and by 1902 a
stzeable enough community of Blacks lived
in the ares to warranl an observation in
the Migmi Metropalis LUal as a group they
held church services and prayver meetings
on @ weekly schedule. Some early black
seltlers were Bahamians, who made their
way to Hallandale through Miami, One
early identifiable black settler in
Hallandale who became a familiar figure
in the community was Peter Timmons, &
native of Live Onk, Florida, who migrated
gouthward in 1905, Timmons initially
grined employment as & sharecropper,
renting acreage from landowners whom he
paid with a portion of the harvest. He
acguired & team of plow mules and cons
tracted for field work with farmers. By the
19205, Timmons had branched out in the
contract business, purchasing a truck and
arranging work forces for construction
projects throughout the area, even as far
soulh as Miami Beach ™

By 1810, more than a third of
Hallandale’s residents were black, ninety
ol the 240 people counted in the precinet as
the community in the census of that year,
About one-fifth of thear number had imma-
grated from the West Indies, probably the
Bahamas, the remainder from north
Florida, Georgin, and the Carclinas, Blacks
migrated to Hallandale for the same rea-
son a8 whiles, seeking improved coonomic
op pertunily in the truck fmrming indusiry,
with which they had great familiarity,
Blacks had alsoanother reasen at the time
b leave their communities in the north
part of Florida and other southern states.
The (ilure of Recanstruction had degener-
ated by the 18908 (o a time of active and
often vielent attempts to disenfranchise
the black voter and to strip from blacks the
rights of citizenship they had assumed to
have won in the post-Civil War period,
Hallandale, like the rest of south Florida,
may have appealed to them as an
unpopulated region without the harsh tra-
ditions of discrimination found in long
established communities.™

In the very early vears of the century,
barely half a decade from the time Lhe first
settlers had arrived inthe area, Hallandale
had becomse a recognized center for the
production of truck ferm produce, particu-
Larly tomatoes, Agricultural tracts ranged
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feature of which Nellic Gieges took advan-
tage. The community at the century’s
bepinning consisted of the reoming house,
a tragding store, several packing houses,
located an the west side of the railread
tracks, and scattered farm houses, The
original railrosd depot, probably con-
strucied in 1896, remains slanding, though
it was cul inte two sections, moved one
block Trom its origanal location, and con-
verted to residential use, somatime before
1042, The two residential o pariment umnits
that ance formed the FECSH Hallandalo
| depot are located at 102-108 Southwest
| First Street.”™
The ruilecad had introduced reliable
| communication and brought with it the
telegraph. In 1902 the first telephone was
installed in Hallandale, at a store operated
by J. B. WedTord, Plans for eonstruction of
a road linking the community with lecali-
ties to the south were discoussed, as
automative transportation began to &s-
sume realistic proportions. In 1902 Dade
| Countyundertook construction of a twelve-
foot-wide rock-surfaced read that ran from
Miami to West Palm Beach, completing

the wark in 1906, A similar road to Dania
The 1910 Hallandale school building still stands, but has undergone was completed in 1910, In 1915 the Dixie

extensive changes since this 1970s pholo was taken. Highway reached Hallandale, Such devel-

| opments ended the area’s isolation,
encouraging immigration of residents to

in size from five to twenty acres. The two '
largest planters in 1902, Tatem Wollord
and McLean & Bansom, shipped on aver-
ape 350 crates diily and three carlead lods
on A wekly basis. Produwee was Eh'ippl'!d- [£4]
markels throughout Uhe easterm seaboard,
Rail communications permitied cxpart
even W midwestern cities, such as Chi-
cago. The largest contractor for hauling
and shipping, T.H. Barlow of Orlande,
emploved twenty men at the task in
Hallandale. A grower himself, Barlow also
operated o packing house. Having tested
thi business waters, meny farmers planned
L settle jﬁ,:r'nl.lllu"ﬁlj}' i Hallandale, Resi-
dential and commercial sonstruction wis
sufficiently extensivie by 12 to warrant
cxlablishment of a local saw mill.”
Emergence of the Community,

18040- 1920

In March 1588, the Beston and Florida
Atlantic Land Company and the Flagler
interests filed with Dade County the first |
plat creating a subdivision within the
present limits of Hallandale, The survey
platted small lots inoan area that reached
from Morthwest Third StreettoSouthwest
Third Street and from the ralread west-
ward leSixth Avenue, Approximately three
square miles of additional land, east and
sauth of the smiall lets, was blocked off in . J . :
e s Packinghouses lining the F.E.C. Railway tracks in Hallandale,

e 19108 (courtesy of Hallandale Historical Society).

| the area and creating a need for comniu-
nity institutions and a commercial

o - . aha o B oL



Broward Legecy — 11

Hallandale's impressive 1916 school building was destroyed by fire in the
1920s {eouriesy of Hallandale Historical Soclety).

infrustructure to serve the growing papu-
Litiom,*

Thefirst schoslhouse, comploted in 15904

and located at the morthwest corner of |

Hallandale Beach Boulevard and Second
Avenue, accommodated ten elementary
sludents in its initinl yvear of classes. A
hurrrcane in 1910 destroved that building.
Hesidenta petitioned the Dade County
Sehool Board for a new building, When the
board pleaded lack of funds ts construct
oni, the pesidenls agsumed bolh the re-
sponsibility anvd Uhecost olbualbding a schoal.
The building Lhey constructed remaimslin
use for six years before the Board of Edu-
cation consiructed a bwo-siory schoolboyse
on the site of the present City Hall, The
1900 bailding servied as a parish house for
the Bethlehem Lutheran Church wntil
1866, when the church donated it to the
residents of Hallandale, It is presently
lecated within the cily’s engineering com-
pound st G Northwesl Second Streel. ™

Secondary sehoel sludenls hisd to braviel
Liseithar Diania or Fort Lawderdale for hagh
stchil classes. Initially they traveled by
Lrimin, before by service was inbrodueed in
L 132 Black children, foreed Lo ationd
sepregilid seheols, faeed worse, The Meth-
edist Church provided space and
instruction for black children until 15916,
when the Dade County Board of Education
constructed the st elementary school for
hlachs in Hallandale, The building, named
the B.F. James Elementary Schioal, was
located at Morthwest Second Avenue and
Minth Street. Distance prohibited black
children seeking a high school education

from commuling to Lhe nearest wvanilahle
selviala in Melbourneand Miame. Untal the
19308, when busing for secondary stu-
dents to a black high school in Fort
Lauderdale was initially offered, they were
fummﬂlﬂhﬂm;ﬁ:r:.nundhrmmmurdl.ynn
A permanenl of semi-permanenl basia *

The 1910 censua counted 240 people in
the Hallandale precinct, residing in sev-
enty-one housaholds. Only ten members of
the commmunity listed Swedenastheir place
ol birth, suggesting that the Seandinavian
origins of the community had beceme suls-
sumzd by settlers from variows parts of the
United States. Florida and Georgia con-
tributed the greatest number of residents
to the community, others came from a
scutlering of states throughout principally
thie =outhenstern puart of the country, The
cemsus revenls an almost exclusive soogs
nomie dependence upon the truck Garm
industry. Fewsccupatwonsolher than breck
fﬂ!‘miI'||_e:1n"E|!|1.|.'l|l:|_'r|I'|l.'|'|I‘.i|!|:| |.|nu|.'|-l.|r|:.,' b
appear. Four storehecpers, fuir carpen-
ters, 4 railroad agend, a mechanie, and two
laumdry workers were recorded, bul mone
associated withanolher businezs or indus-
iy ™

The community contained some sev-
anty-five buildings in 1914, Nearly all of
them consisted of residences or buildings
assaciated with the truck farm industey.
Moneresidential or farming buildings in-
cluded three churches, a school, one general
store, and two grocery stores. The build-
ings and the population were Iocated on
2,500 acres of marl land, which residents
al the time dividied into two sections: the

“Front” or “East Prairie,” consisting of the
land bBetween the rail lhine and the
Intracoastal 'Waterway, and the "West
Prairie,” the remaining part west of the
rwilromd, About 1,400 acres of land was
wnder cultivation in the twos sections.™
The packing houses extended along the
rail lime. As many a8 fourteen such build-
ings lined the west side of the tracks. The
Morth American Fruit Company owned
three of the houses; other packing house
aperators, as liated in Uhe Mine Metropo.
fiz, included J.B. Wolert (Wollord?) &
Company, HA. Bamett, Wighy, Geiges
Tros,, W H, Strickland, O, Curei, Ed Johne
son, Wilkins & "I"d,:u,gh_:,'ral.um Waolurd, E.
Saners, B E:I.‘LEL"I'H.I:IJII’ L. E-thuull'lut‘;gét'-ﬁ
Burks. On the East Praime, the Norih
American Fruit Company, probably the
Largest grower in the community, had S04
meres in omatoes, LHLL, Sjostrom, an
carly seltler, manuged the company’s ac-
tivities in Hallandale. The major growers
on the East Prairie included J.B. MofTiit,
wha had 100 acres in tomatoes; Howard
Wilkins, ten seres; and EV. Palmguist,
twenby-one peres. The farms on the West
Priirie were evidently smaller in seale,
consisting of plots wo greater than twenty
acres in size, though Anderson planted
fifty peres in tomatoes in 1914, Two of the
paacking houses remain standing, though
bith have been highly altered and one of
them moved. The Schoenberger Packing
House, constrected in 1912, stands at 112
Sputhepst Third Street, although Lthat ad-
d.ﬂ!!ﬂii muEy nak have been ils uwig'ina]
lecation. Thebuilding has been intensively
renovabed in conversion toresidential use,
but prabably retains its eriginal configura-
tion. & second extant |.ru|.'h'l'|.|{ house, found
in Lhe 100 bl ok of Northeast First Avenue,
lost wirtually all of its origimal appearance

| amid the alterations it has experienced ™

Growing, packing, and shipping toma-
Lisps weats @ large industry in Hallandale by
World War [. By 1914, over 400K crates
were annually shipped Crom Che ares, Dare
ing World War [, agricultural prices, in
relation o other guods, escalated Lo the
highest levels in the malien's history, In
the first vear of the Hlln:lp-uan war,
Hallundale firmers recerved $2 25 per crate
for tomatoes, perhaps as much as a dellar
per crate more than they had received in
P, Aroand that time they alsa increased
their production and shipping of other
CTORS, inl;lud:ini; cucumbers, beans, and
grapelruil. The Geiges brothers were con-
sidered the largest growers ol grapelruitin
the area. Their groves were located in the
far western part of the area, reaching to
what 18 now Pembroke Park, abowt two
and one half miles west ol the rail line, Like
moat farmers, they probably enjoyed a
healthy esonomic return during the war
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Price & cmls

JOHN B. HART'S
PIONEER STORE

" The Store that Handles
Everything 'for Everybody

Dry Goeds aed Notions,
Shows for Men, Women and Children
Staple and Fancy Groceries
Fresh and Cooloed Meats
Hardware and Wensils
Furnishings and Movelties

Cold Drinks for Warm Days

Hogs or Chickens

“In the Heart of Hallandale”

Corner Dixie Highway and Beach Drive

e

Feed for Horses, Mules, Cows,

- -
e

P P e R S e e e R R e e e s e B S BT i

The Hallandale Gamge

s Right on the Dixie H_l'phmny

We Bepuir Aony Mibe of Cas and We curry mast all Asmsmebils
o il G The Chasge W rea- PN [ onrper . — |
sanabils. Tt Swtivvianr.

GAS---Agents for Federal Tires---0OILS

PFHONE IF YOU NEED OUR HELF

CLAWSON BROTHERS, Props.

1 Ain by MogBarmg, o ¢ Cvwas Dvire

NALLANTALE, FLOR/DA i

r !\"ﬂh'ww TRADES A‘T :
i Hedrick's Department Store §
' We Buy for Cash and Sell for Cash '
Caads
Dey Shoes for all
Hardwars
Furniisre
Hul:ing: and Cooking Steves
Dirags and wines
Feed and Fertilizars §

Agency for Goedyear Automebile Tires
Ford Car Repairs

GEO. W, HEDRICK, Prop.

Digspaaite [lepat

Advertisements from a 1921 issue of the Hallandale Herald newspapoer
show some of the community’s predominant businesses from that era.




vears on Uwir economic investment in the
land and crops. The experience wndoubt-
edly colored their outlock on the value of
the land as the war ended and a new era
b, ™

Hallandale had grown in population
during the first two desaides of the contury,
but it remained an agricultural commu-
nity in 1918, devoted almost exclusively to
the growing and shipping of farm produce,
chielly tomatoes, The town's langest build-
ing. the highschool, constructed in 1916an
the site of the present-day City Hall, was
animposing Lwo-slory slructure, cast inan
Iaelimn Rimaissamnoe desgn. The residences,
fur Lhe most part, were occupied by people
whoowned or managed Uhe vegelable plots
or whi tlled the ficlds and picked the
crops. The prinelple concentration of com-
mereinl buildings was found along the radl
line, consisting of the packing and ship-
ping houses and & depol. John Harl's
general store feed the depot from the sast
side of the tracks. Other commercial build-
inges were few in number, anly the small
grovery and meat shops and dry goods
slores necessary Lo provide the essential
goads Tor everyday living in the commou-
nity. Much of that was to change
dramatically in the next decade,™

The Greal Florida Land Boom
11818-1926)

Tha: first. half of the 19208 decade wit-
messed an era of uwnprecedented
development and cconomic expansion in
Florida, It is dilficult (o exaggerate the
proportions of the real estate frenzy that
gripped the state or of the physical growth
that resulted, Between 1920 and 1930, the
slate’s population rose from 968470 to
1468211, To accommodate the specula-
tive demand for a piece of Florida real
estate, developers hastily acquired hith-
erto unplatied tracts of land, subdivided
them, and began offering the lots for sale in
markets throughoul the United States,
Although the land boom had its genesis in
south Florids, particularly Miami, no part
al the stsle escaped its elfects. Invirtuallv
every cily and lown, new dubdivisians wers
platted and lots sold and resold in short
arder, the price cecalating with esch sale,
Buyers descended on south Florida in
diroves. Twenty thousand people were esti-
mated to be armiving in Florida daily in
December, 1924, as the boom reached its
height. That fall, the state legi=lature is-
suedan open invitation lowealthy investors
with approval of a constitutional amend-
ment prohibiting cither an income Lax or
an imheritance tax, The resulting capital
influx Turther inflatid an already over-
bl real estaie hulible ™

Transportation networks were ox-
parddid, making travel easier both bo and

__ Brownrd Legney — 13

| Crowds gather atJ. W, Young's sales pavilion in boomtime Hollywood, which
| temporarily absorbed Hallandale (courtesy of Florida Photographic Collee-

tion, Florida Siate Archives).

within the state. By 1927, approximately
6,000 miles of railroad track had been
conslructed, The State Rosd Department
had paved 18 miles of rosdway by 19028,
Many communitics spansored road con.
abruclion programs in congunclion with
the state government. The autonichdle,
introduced early in the century, becamean
mstrument of common use after Warld
War | and began to exert fundamental
changes in the secial and physical fabric of
the country. It sean supplanted the il
road as the vehicle of cholee for Lraveling Lo
sputh Florida. Typically, only relatively
affluent travelers had wsed the railroad as
& commin means of raveling to and fram
the state. Automobile access to Flonda
became possible in the 19208 with con-
struction of highways linking the states,
and middleclass tourists began to treat
Florida as a surmmertimse destination., Con-
struction of U.S., Highway 1 in Flonda
began in 1920, Largely completed by 18927,
LS. 1 incorporated much of the carlier
Dixie Highway into ils design ™

Chnngﬂ came Lo Hallandalie |||Fl.|:-r I:|1.-|:
war, although not precisely in the ways
experienced in other south Flarida com-
miunities. Seven plats filed before 1918
within the boundaries of the present-day
community are recorded in the Broward
Coundy records, In the subsequent eight
years, at boast thirty-three plats were Dled.
Despite the apparently ambitious desgos
to populate Hallandale with residential
houses, comparatively litthe actual devel-
opment oceurred. Vegetable growers may
have hesitated to break up the relatively
large apricultural tracts they had suecess-
fully cultivated in the preceding two

decacles. Mareover, the sucoess of many
farms probably priced the land comprising
them out of the residential development
markel. Vacant, unused,and cheaper land
was aviilable elsewhers, and ot the start

| offthe Boom, Hallandabe's agrecultural land-

owners were not aware of the problems
their indusiry was Lo experience in the

| coming decade ™

Land for the taking was aviilable im-
medintely north of Hallandale, In 1920, »
real estate promoter from Indianapalis,
doseph Young, selected a one-square mile
tract of land just above the recognized
limits of Hallandale to create a new gy,
Like many other promobers at the time,
Young seized wpon America's newly
arouséed fscination wath Florida as a land
ofbeaches, perpetual sunshine, and oppor-
tunity. He called his propected development
Hallywood-By-the-Sea, after the Califor-
nia ¢ity ho had once inhabited, Operations
began in carly 1921 with & survey and
baaut of the proposed city, Young setupa
real estate headguarters in Miami. He
pioneered in the techniques of land sales
promotions used throwghout the Great
Hoom: free transportation and meals of-
fered to prospective buyers, accompanied
by bands. orchestras, and Chautaugua
speakers. The selling of Florida real estate
became an enterlainment event.™

Young's businessorganization, the Hol-
Iywooed Land and Water Company,
purchased 4,723 acres on the mainland for
development and acquired an additional
abid seres of beachfront property sosn afl-
ter. Work started with clearing of Uhe land,
and in late 1922 construction of the first
three buildings, a garage, administration
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building;, and hotel, began, all of them
company properties, Private individoeals
soon began o purchase property near the
company eomplex as a location for com-
mergial buildings. By Seplember 1923,
s 2 5HH) acres were under developnent.,
mast ol it in residential property, Young's
ambitious plans included development of s
world seaporl al Liake Mabel . Tour buases
brought in visitors [Fom as far away as
Atlanta. An estimated 100,000 people vis-
ited the prospective city in 1922, Many

bought band, and by 1925, the pepulation |

of Hollywaood had, by one count, escalated
Lo some 30,000 inhabitants. 17 accurate,
that number made it the largest city in
Broward County.™

Hallandale was neither unheed{ul or
unaffected by the mushrooming develop-
ment north of it. Attempls were made to
import the Boom southward. Young him-
self purchased forty-five acres of land from
Charles Ericssan. W Mol establshed
a real estade brokerage firm. Other land-
owners subdivided tracts they owned and
encouraged small-scale residential devel-
opment. Jome development in theteadition
of the Boom did eccur in Hallandale, but it
remained relatively small in measure. The
Atlantic Shores company, in concert with
the Moffitt real estate interests, planned o
development immediately sast of the Fed-
eral Highway, several blocks north of
Hallandale Beach Boulevard. A handiul of
Mediterranean Hevival siyle houses that
were consequently built and sold at the
time remain standing in that area,
Hallandale's most concenlratod architec-
tural legacy of the Grest Boom, ™

Building siyles riflecti ng & Spanish or
alL“':IIl.LmI'IL'HIIHTI:IIJL!ﬂIJﬂIInﬂ'-'l.lrl:l:'\fﬂll'll."
widely popularin Florida during the Great
Boom, The reasons vary. Developers con-

sciously seught o capitalize on the states |

S]:-.u:nish h:l‘il.ugu:. The physical features
codrarmon Lo archibeclure fram the Mediler-
ranean Bazin proved adaptable to Flonda's
climate and envaronment. Finally, several
recent mational architectural expositions
had aroused inlerest in the traditeon of
Spainand early Spanish Calonial Amerea,
Throughout Hallandale are a number of
buildings, principally residences, that re-
vl useof 8 Mediterranean theme in their
canstruction, Two commercial examples of
the style include the Gieges Building {now
considerably altered), located at the north-
wisl corner of Dixie Highway and
Hallandale Beach Boulevard; and the
Schwartz Building, 420 South Dixie High-
winy, also constructed in 1925,

I addition to the small residences in
the Atlantic Shores subdivizion, other
Mediterranean Revival howses may be
found scatiered throughout the city. An
elegant two-story residential example is

located al 34 Seuwthwest Eighth Street,
constructed in 1926 by John Thompson, a
winter resident from Chicago, wha then
chiose abonee Lo sell the propery. The most
significant residenes fom Uhe period may
be the Curci House, at 324 Soulhwesl
Second Avenue. The building was deskgmed
in the slyle ol an lalian Benaissance villa,
reveiled by the Homanesgue arches along
the (ronl facade that suggest an [Lalian
loggia and the balustrade atop a full story
balcony. Frank A, Curci, an important
figure in Hallandale, arrived in 1905 with
his wife and three children. Seven more
children were aventaally barn bo the wnion
of Frank and Bosa Curel. A native of Franeo,
the son of & p merchant, Cure
moved b Hallandabe from Key West, whers
he had operated & grocery store. He pur-
chased ten acres of land, began growing
tomataes, and soon constructed a packing
hiouse. Curel prospered and took an active
part in community affairs, The Carci resi-
denog, 'immcd.i:tdy wiesl ul'ﬂl.l].' Hall, aie
of theaty's important legactes ol Lhe 15208,
i @ local landmark ™

Hallandale's commercial seclor ex-
panded considerably during the 19208, as
service businesses developed to accommo-
date Uhe town’s growing popul ation as wall
as the burgeoning community of Haolly-
wood north of it, Real estate lirms
dominated the hst of compsercial estab-
lishovenis. As many as four of them wers
silaited in Hallandale. Several combined
dry goods and grocery stores with
Hallandale addresses placed advertise-
ments w0 the Greater Hollyweosd City

Lhrectery, alongwith twodmig stores, which
also affered a variety of olher gpoods, Tha
twmy contsined & builder’s supply, @ meat
and procery stare,an aulomoedive garage. a
gleam laundry, and three churchies, There
were surely other eommercial establish-
menids Uit did nod sdvertise in Uhe directory
amd churches which the directory did not
list, specifically those in what had evalved
as the Back sommunity. '

The decade of the 1930s witnessed a
change in the coonamic compesition ol Lhe
black community of Hallandale. Befure
1920, blacks had migrated to the area to
establish farms of their own, to rent felds
for tillage as sharccroppers, or to hare their
services as farmworkers. They were conse-
quently dispersed geographically
throughout the community, since thedr farm
work did not permit concentration of active
ity or of houschalds, Jim Johnsan tilled
fields in the remote southwestern part of
Hallandale, ane of the few farmers in that
area in the early part of the centuary.

Im the 1930 blacks bagan to enter e
pommunity in search of non-agricultural
wark. The growing prosperity of the com-
munity enabled same white residents o
oy demestic |'||,=_'||.n. Constroction activ-
ity in surrounding communities and in
Hallandale itsell opened opportumity for
employvment of blacksas lnborers or trades
waorkers, The lumber industry offered jobs
for Blacks Peter Timmons, as we moled.
umﬂnl‘ﬂl}d crews Lo work i 1’.‘|1.'al‘i.l'||_! land
for romds and development Trom Hiolly-
wisod Lo Minmi Beasch. Such drcumstance
micanl that blacks had to occupy house-

Geia e

W a

The Frank and Rose Cuarci howse

, Hallandale's preeminent 1920s

Hndiim.ncun-;l‘.arlu ‘b-u'lllliﬂﬁ.. was conslrucied in 1924,
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Article from the January 17, 1926 Fort
Louderdale Sunday News describing
the annexation of Hallandale into
Hully v,

hollds which were not associaied with farm-
steads they tilled or were employved at.
Hiellandile, despate its ethnie origing, was
a southern town and accordingly segre-
gated. Blacks were therefore increasingly
forced Lo establish residences and living
quarters ina concentrated partof the town
and to develop a commiercial infrastruc
ture ol their own. Within the northwest
quadrant of the twn, the blocks reaching
wesl from Lhe Dicde Highway to Korthwaest
Beventh Street consequently became the
black section, The cily cemelery was coq-
sidered the oulskirts of what was called
“Colored Town" fron the 1920s to modemm
times."

Ome small area in the nortlvwest guad-
ranl became relerved to as “Peppertown,”
A Miami minister, the Rev, Maddox, at-
tempted in 1926 tocreate s develepment in

the neighbarhood between Third Avenue :

and Fourth Avenue near Foster Road,
which he called “Maddox Quarters.” Mo
filed plat of the area appears in the Bro-
wirrd County records, although residents
continued to refer to that area as
Peppertown until the 19405, The Town
Minutes from 1928 contain mention of the
area by that name, Many Blecks constracted
residences in the nerthwest quadrant in
the 1920 and 19908 & common means of
financing construction of thair homes was
to obiain a morgege from the lumber
company that supplied the building mate-
rials, One resident recalls her parents
parying a lumber company a monihly mort-
gage fee ol $0.00.4

Lifewiathin Colored Town often reflocted
the subsistence sconomic levels of many of
its. inhahitants, but it also exhibited a
vibrant side, Residential housing was in-

| wariably vernscular, the houses built of

ping woad, with @ living room, bedrooms,

| amal a kitchen contaimed within either a
| sguare ar rectangular floor plan. Few |

boasted indoor plumbang in the P00s, like
the dwellings of poor o moderate income
families elsewhere at the time, Many resi-
dents employed a harter sconomy for goods
and services. Farmers traded Mesh wegs
elables for seafeod or drey goods,
Black-vwned businesses that developed in
Colored Town and persisted into the 1940
ineluded John Cooper's Market, Marlene
Gates’s Sundry and Drogs, Peter
Timmons's Grocery, (Mge Cooper’s Beauty
Salon, the Blue Moon Restaurant, a barber

| shop, gns stations, and a roaming house, A&

movie Lheater provided entertainment. In

| the 1950% the Palms Night Club and Bar

became linked to the “Chitlin Circoit,”
which brought te the city some of the
nation’s finest black entertainers, includ-
ing Jackie Wilson, James Brown, the
Drifters, and Sam Cooke, among others,™

The agriculiural component of the local |

SOOTAEY declired t.hmu.ghuut the 19208,
in relative and absolute terms, inducing
physical change throughout the commu-
mity, The rewarding prices which farmers
had received for their vegetables during
the World War [ era fell dramatically after
theconilict, as agriculbure entered a lengthy
poriod of depressed prices. The production
and shipment oflomatocs dropped precipi-
tously. Experimentation with the
marketing of other vegelable crops also
declined. Low prices undoubtedly provided
the principal reason for that event, but
other factors were also at work. The soil
may have begun toexhaust itsalf, a victim
of the coneentration upon one crop for aver
two decades, Reclamation of swarmpland
had begun to work its toll, manifesting
itsell in reduced natural moisture capa-
bilities of the soil. Other parts of
southeastern Florida, less intensively cul-
tivated, probably offered moere productive
land. By the end of the decade, agricultural
production in the Hallandale area hardly
sustained more than a few packing
houses, *

Experiencng declinein theirtraditional
means of livelihood and witnessing an
explosion of activity in real estate develop-
ment around them, some landowners and
residents began looking toward other av-
enues al activily. Fascinated by the growth
in Hollywood, adjpining the borders of
Hallandale, they msked on January 15,
1926 o be annexed inta Uhe morthern city.
The petition for annexation, signed by a
majority of property ownersin Hallandale,
wis presented to the Hollywood City Com-
mission less than two months after the
bistter was chartered, Hollywood appeoved
the petition and absorbed its seuthern
neighbor. The merger of the two communi-
ties proved ill-futed, The Greal Florida
Boom and Hellywoods good fortune had
about run their course.

The wir began Lo seep out of the speou-
Iative ol estate bubble in 1925, Bank
deposils fell sharply in that year as na-
tioma] attention was increasingly focused
upon the speculative excesses ceourring in
Florida, Bankers and businessmen
throughout the country complained about
translers ol momey to Florida. Newspapers
suggested fraud in land sales, The Inter-
nal Revenue Service began demanding
payment for profits made in the quick
turnover of real -ea:.ate.InAI.q';uat. 1925 the
FEC, pleading a nmeed to repmir its
averburdened tracks, suspended Freight
ghipments to south Florida, Ports and rail
terminals north of the embargoed destina-
tions became clogged with building
supplies, while in south Florida constrse-
tiom slowed and real cstate prices started
to drop, Banks then began to fail, more
than forty in all during 1926, In the sum-
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Ruins of the Hallandale Garage on Dixie Highway after the 1926 hurricane

ey | PR

Gulfstream Park (left) and the Hollywood Greyhound Track iright)
as they appeared in the late 19305 and early 1940s
ieourtesy of Hallandale Historical Societyl



mer of Lt year, nature added to Florida's
misfortunes. ™

Un September 17, 1926 a devastating
hurricane, with winds clocked at 128 miles
por howr, struck the southeast cosist, the
ey of Lhe storm passing over the Holly-
wooil-Hallandale area. Residents sogght
sheeller in buildings that might withstand
the Neree winds, The Curei residence, buill
of stone, was oo of Lhem, When the slorm
died on the afternosn of the following day
and they emorged Mmom their places of
refuge, residents encountered almost total
destruction of the community. Loss of life
mmag residents in Hallandale was eom-
paratively small, perhaps no mare than
ten peaple. Property damage was heavy.
Thee enduring damayge wis inflicted upon the
region s econoey, partkeslarly the real estate
market. Petential investars and land buy-
ers, previously alarmed by the unfaverable
attention focused on Florida, had now
Ereater reason Lo be wary of the state,

Yoaung's Hollvwood empire, Ainancially
at bay, faced collapse. Presented with the
costsof reconslructionatop the need e pay
affincurred debt, Mnding few ifany bayers,
the city itselland Young's company found
themselves in desperate straits. The resi-
dents of Hallandale quickly reconsidered
their decision Lo jean Hollywood. A group of
Hallandale landowners appeared before
the Hollywood City Commission on Mo
vember 36, 1926, aﬁkillg ta e remaved
from the city limits. Their request was
approved the following March. A group of
delegates from the community, led by J W,
Moffitt, Sr., thereupon presented a re-
quest Lo the stale legislature Tor
incorperation of the Town of Hallendale,
Tha legislature a pproviesd Lhiecharter, which
the vaters of Hallandale ratified oo May
14. The first Lown council included Moffite,
Charles Ericsson, C.E, Ingalls, Olof
Zetterlund. and Henry Gieges. Moffilt was
selected as president of the council. Tha
population at the time of mearporation
numberad slightly less than 1,000,

The Depression and Altermath

The collapse of the real estate bomm
sent Florida plunging indode pression threo
yenrs in advance of the rest of the country,
The stock market erash of 1928 and the
enswing eeonamic decline experienced else.
wivere throughout the United States proved
merely anbichimactic to Florida, In the
14930, little popubation growih oceurred in
Hallandale, but the city did experience
continuing change. Theagriculiural seclor
revived slightly aflter the 19296 crush and a
secund hurmicane in 1928, but then again
lapsed and, in the 19408, exhausted itself

Perhaps the greatest change to the com-
munity came with the introduction of casine
gambding in the 1930 and in the 1980s of
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parirmutuel wagering, featiwring a doglrack.
Hallandale voters in 1934 approved estab-
lishment of the track, which opened
December 12 onone of the coldest nightsin
Hallandale history. Still, 12,000 people
paid Lo see the dogs run that night. A large
horse race track, Gulfstream, was con-
structed in the late 15906 and briefly opened
im 1539, Unsuccessiul at first, it closed for
five vears until new management pro.
vided an infusion of cash which the track
required to sustain operations. The prineci-
pal eflect of these events upan the people of
Hallandale lie in limited sconomic oppor-
tumnity and cocasional crowds of visitors. ®

That was particularly true of the casinog
gambling era, a strange interlude in the
history of Hallandaleand Broward County.
Like many other socal phenomena of the
post-World War 1 period, open gambling
apparently resulted from prohibition, The
illegal sale of liquor, or “boatlegging,” gens
eraled huge profits for a growing
underworld class, In company with other
Americans at the time, the noveaux riche
“gangsters” adopted south Florida as a
=pooddd o vacation home, Their number
included the notorious Al Capone, who at
ane time ren Lhe Hollywood Country Club,
and Mever Lansky, a resident of
Hallandale, who with his brother Jake
operated the Colonial Inn, built By the
Framk Costello svndicate, next to the
Gulfsiream Park on Federal Highway,
Local lowmen, politicians, and ressdents
tolerated the casinos nsa source ol jobs and
money dunng difficull cevmomie Limaes,
Moreover, gambling, whether in casinos or
at the track, was expected W contrilbuate to
thi development of south Florida's tourist

i

and entertainment industry. Casino gam-
bling endured, sometimes thally, wntil
the 19505, when Senator Estes Kefauver of
Tennessee, a presidential candidate,
broughi his Senate Crime Investigating
Committes to Miami. Kefauver presided
over highly publicized open and televised
hearings on the isswe of crime in south
Florida, oneof thi firstinstances in the use
af television for such purposes, The ensu-
ing public outery inspired by the hearings
forced mn end to the illegal activity™

Building did cecur during the Depres-
sion Era, particularly as the New Deal
programs began to take effect. Federal
mortgage loan assistance programs en-
abled some residential housing to cocur
after 1934, A Federal Savings and Loan
Bank was set up in Hollyweod that year,
encouraging local construction. In the pub-
lic sector, federal relief programs designed
to stimulate employment, particularly the
Works Progress Administration (WAL
resulted in construction of governmental
related buildings. Municipal gevernment,
conducted from the time of ineorporation
in & white frame building at 124 North-
west Minth Street, moved in 15941 to new
quarters ab ils present site, 308 South
Dixie Highway, replacing a two-story school
building that onee stood there. A jmil was
constructed at the same time.

The historic period, considered loend at
the closi of World War 1, does nod encom-
pu,ﬁl.lwh'l,ﬂy pL-aLLrunafnnlml.iumwhith
the City of Hallandale has experienced. In
a physical sense, the city grew relatively
little am Che century's lirst four decades. An
acrial photograph of Hallandale made in
1942 reveals a still largely rural commu-

The infamous Coloninl Inn, Hallandale's most famows gambling casing, as it
appeared at the height of its popularity in the late 1940s (courtesy of Hallandale

Histocial Society).
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nity, containing a few pockets of buildings
surrounded by vacant hields, presumably
deveted Lo farming or simply consisting of
clewred but undeveloped lands, The two
rice trwechs provide, obviously, the mosi
conspicwus landmarks, both of them set
in the midst of agnculiural lands. The
mioat concentrated housing appears in the
northwest section of the aty, confined to
the blocks situated west of Sikth Avenuse
and north of Faster Road, The expanse of
land west and southwest of that part of the
northwest quadrant remained entirely
wacanl.

The seuthwest guadrant, south of
Hallandale Beach Boulevard and west of
Ihxee Highway, which in 15992 offers a
.'i|.'|i|.|.lil||:'¢' organized and almost fully devel-
up-mf pallern al residentiol settlement,
contained only seallered housing. Buoild-
ing= in that quadrant, moreover, narvowly
bordered those two mapor city thorough-
fares, The developed lots generally ran but
two blocks south of Hallandale Beach Bou-
levard and cne block west of Dixie Highway.
The big expunse of territory within that
quadrant that les west of Southwest See-
ond Avenue and south of Southwiest Third
Street was entirely vacant, abaut hallaf it
taken wp by tilled felds and hal by cleared
thongh undeveloped ground,

The “East Prairie,” thoze lnnds cnst of
Dixde Highway, presented only scatlered
blocks of housing, none of them olfering a

dense concenlration ol Imiln;llngx. In the
nartheast quadrant, the Atlantic Shores
subdivision of 1950 houses, three blocks
biween MNortheast Sixth Street, Morih-
cisl Fourth Avenue, Northeast Fourth
Streel, and Federanl Highway, and an ad-
Joining Block on the east side ol Federal
Highway contained a lonely concentration
ofbuildings inthe vicinity of the race track.
Soattered housing eccurred in the blocks
bedween the Dixie Highway and Federal
Highway and south of Nomheast Third
Street. Theonly apparent remaining pack-

ing houses appearsd in that guadrant,
sibuated, on the cast side of the [Nxie
Highway, balow Mortheast Third Street.
I this gquadrant, as in the other three,
Hallandale Beach Boulevard remained
largely devoid of commercinl develgunent.,
The lands east of Federsl Highway were
neatly divided into rectangular plots as far
a5 Mortheast Fourteenth Avenue, where
even farmland stopped. The Gulfstream
track complex dominates the eastern part
of the southeast guadrangle. The track
wis surrounded on three sides by agricul-
tural fields. West of the track and of Federal
Highway, scattersd houses appeared in
random blocks, the densest pockets olbuild-
ings at the junctures of Hallandale Beach
Boulevard with both the Dixie Highway
and Federal Highway ™

The poat-1950 experience of Hallandale
is similar to that of virtually every other
major Florida city: ineressing numbers of

auwtomaobiles and a growing expanse of
asphalt, aninterstate highway systen that
culs through the city, residential sprwl,
the grivdual eresaon of a cenbral core, and
strip development along major highways.
Perhaps the most striking physical devel-
opment resulted from construction of &
concentrated row af highrise condomin-
ums=and apartments along the waterfront,
a major change in slate housing patterns
The western fields also filled with build-
ings, mainly residemsces on relatively large
bds, eontaining a population that was
aparse in relation to the densely ocoupied
eastern or beachfiront tervilory

A community of agrculiursl ongins
whose population grew slowly in ks lrst
five decades of existence and whose com-
mercial sector did not develop until well
miter the close of the hastorc |J-|:|:|1u:| 118
1945, Hallandale conlams t'l:]z‘lli".'l:"'L!.' T
potential histore buildings in relation to
its 1592 population of seme 40,000 inhb-
itants, The surviving buildings from the
historic past consist overwhelmingly of
residences. The few non-residential build-
ings from the period have been altered to
o ddegres or another. So have many of the
residences, though some retain their origi-
nal appearance, They offer the city its only
tangible linkswith its past. Althoughsmall
in number and scattered in location, the
historic bualdings deserve attention as the
city prepares for even greater chinges in the
twenly-first contury.

Aerinl view of Hallandale, looking north, 1958, showing extensive post-World War I construction
(gourtesy of Hallandale Historical Society)
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l. Thiz artcle resulted from a praject
financed in part from historic preser.
vialion grant assistance provided by
the Bureau of Historic Preservation,
Florida Department of State, assisted

by the Florida Historic Preservation |

Advisory Council. The City of
Hallandale also provided assistance
and Tunding to the project. The con-
tents and oplnions contained within do
ik, however, necessanly rellect the
views und epinions of the Flarida De-
partment of State or the City of
Hallandale,
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